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1. The Appeals Chamber of the International Crimind Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons 

Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious Violations of Intemationd Humanitarian Law 

Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and Rwandan Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Other- 

Serious Violations Committed in the Temtory of Neighbouring States, between 1 January and 31 

December 1994 ("Appeals Chamber" and 'Tribunal", respectively) is seized with five requests, 

fded by Georges Rutaganda ("Mr. Rumganda"). . ~ . . . . .  

I. BACKGROUND . . .  . 

2. In its Judgement of 26 May 2003, the Appeals Chamber confirmed Mr. Rutaganda's 

convictions fcr genocide and extermination as a crime against humanity, entered an additional 

to the Gcneva Cbnventions, and upheld his 

In uphoIding the convictions of the ~hal  Chamber, the Appeals 

findings that MI. Rutaganda dismbuted weapons and aided 

ordered, committed, and aided and abetted in crimes 

participated in the massacres at dcole Technique 

diversion of refugees to Nyanza and the subsequent 

massacre there.2 

3. On 13 April 2d06, Mr. Rutaganda ftled a consolidated motion containing a request for 

1 reconsideration, review and for assignment of coun~el .~ The Pmsecbtion filed a Consolidated 

~ e s p o n s e ~  to the t for Reconsideration, Request for Review, and Request for Assignmenr of 

Counsel on 23 and Mr. Rutaganda fled a Consolidated Reply on 7 June 2006.~ In 
I 

' Geqrges Rutu~anda v. Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-96-3-A, Judgement. 26 May 2003 ("Rutagan& Appcd 
Judgement"); 7he v. Cebrges Ruraganda, Case No. ICTR-%3-T, 6 Deceniber 1999 ('tRutagmda Trial 

also ovemuned a conviction for murder na a mi+ against humanity. See 

! 

e&u en &ision de i'urrit e d  ir 26'Mai 2003 par la Chambre 
riporation ah prijudiCelcause par la violuhn pur 
la Chambre d'Ame1 mncher sur la orte~lion &. - 

commission d'officed'une jw;diqus 3 M. Rutago&. I3 Apnl 7036 ("~on;olida'tcd Request"). >or clmity, 
the Ameals Chamber the three reouests szoaratclv in thc Lcxi as Rkuesc for Reconullcration Rcauc,~ ~* 7 I 

~. . 
for ~ & i e w ,  and Request J owf ins  d'une demand.? en reconsidir(1lion etlou en r6vwion de VarrPr @ n d r r  it. 26 
moi 2003 par h l'aflaire Rutaganda d Procureur [ICTR-96-3iA) et en 'nparation du prijudice 

des r@rmmts dlr Trihmar a d  "Requ2re ay , fmr  de voir lu Chmnbre d'Appel 
d'ofice dkne awistoncr juridique 2 ~ d t a ~ a n d a " ,  73 May 2006 

I 

Rdplique de l'Appelcmt au "Prosecutor's Rt:vnsc to 'Requ&e e ~ r f i n r  d'une &nu&& e reconsrd5ration ct/uu en 
rdvision de I'arrEt rendrr ir 26 mni 2003 par la Chmhre U p p e l  &ns 1 bffaire Rritugqndu J Pmureur (ICTR-%&A) 
et en rPparatiort du pr@&fice cause par la violation par k Procureur; Requete -fins dd voir la Chamhre d'Appel 
t rmher  .mr Ia question de commi~sion d'ufice d'une us~~islance juridigue a M. Ru~agandu, 7 June 2006 ("Consolidated 
Reply"). I I 

, I 
Case No. ICTR-96-03-R 1 8 Dccunbcr 2006 



-. . 0 8 / 1 2  ' 0 6  1 6 : 5 2  FAX 0031705128932  I CTR 003  

431lH 
addition, on 17 August 2006, Mr. Rutaganda filed a Request for ~ i s c l $ s u r e ~  and the Prosecution 

filed its Response to the Request for Disclosure on 28 August 2006.~ Rutaganda filed his Reply 

to the Request for Disclosure on 8 September 2006.' 

4. In addition, on 26 October 2006, Mr. Rutaganda filed a ~ q i e s t  for clarification? The 

Prosecution filed a Response on 1 November 2006,1° and MI. Rutaganda replied on 13 November 

2006." 
I 

. .DISCUSSION 1 

A. Reouests for Reconsideration and Clariticdtion 

5. In his Request for Reconsideration, Mr. Rutaganda requests! the Appeals Chamber to 

reconsider its Judgemen\ arguing that the Appeals Chamber erred in itsltreatment of his arguments 

challenging the Trial Chamber's findings on: (1) his role in distributing kapons  in connection with 

h e  ldllings in Cyahali sector; (2) his role in the detention and F l i n g  of Tutsis at Amgar garage; 

and (3) his "humanitarian acts" which negate his genocidal intjnt andlmitigate his In 

making this request, Mr. Rutaganda invokes the Appeals ~tarnber's inherent jurisdiction to 

seconsider its decisions in order to prevent manifest i~justice. '~ I 
6. While Mr. Rutaganda seeks to rely upon the ~ ~ ~ e a $  CIu+nber1s inherent power to 

reconsider its own decisions, that power does not extend to finaliudgernents. This limitation on the 

power of reconsideration was clearly established by the App 'ds Chamber of the International 9.  . . .  
Criminal Tribunal for the former Yugoslavia in the agi6 Reconsiderahon ~ e n s l o n ' ~  and followed 

I 
I 

non coviardees et autrex 

compIete, k s  declarationr non 
28 August 2006 ("Response 

to Disclosure Request"). 

Ruraganda": 8 Scplcmbcr 2006 ("Rcply to Disclosure Request"). 

"iplique pur [ 'Appehl  au "Prosecution's Response to 'ReguBte divulgwr ['identiti 
romplete, les declnrations rwn caviardies et autres documents 

' RequPre urgenge en darifcation suite d ln &cision de la ,Chambre 

Riponse du Prucureur ci lo ''Requite urgenre suite a h 
(IT-W-3&I/A) le 20 juin 2006 dipode pur Gorges Aderron Nderubumwe Rutagandu", 1 November 2006 
(-Response"). . . . .  
" REpligue par I'Appelant a "la Rkpmsc du Procureur d '!a Req&te urgen , en ch$kahon  suite o la decrsion de ki 
Chambre d'Apprl. r m h  danr I'nffaire Zigi! (IT-98-3Ul-A) Ir 20 juin 2LK16"', 13 November 2006 ("Reply"). 
" Consolidated Request, paras 13. 14, 26-111. 
" Consolidalcd Rcqucst, paras 16-25, citing The Prosecutor v. Wruvko Mucid It aL, Case No. IT-96-21-Abis, 
Judgement on Sentence Appe.al,S April 1003, pars  48-58 ("Mucic'et rrL Appeal Judgcmcnl"). 
" The Prorecutor v. Zoran .&id, Case No. TT-98-3W1-A, Dccision on ~ o r a k  &id'$ "Motion for Reconsideration of 
Appeals Chamber Judgement IT-98-3011-A Delivered on 28 Fcbruary 007, P6 June 2006. p a .  9 (".%fiid 
Rwonsiderntion Decision"). See also The Prosecutor v. Tihomir Bl&,'d, P Case No. IT-95-14-R, Decision on 
Pmsccutor's Rcqucsl Tor Rcvicw or Rcconsid~~ation, 23 November 2006. paras 79, 80!("~l&kid~eview Decision"). 

I I 
Cuse No. ICTR-36-03-R 
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by this Appeals Chamber in the Niyitegeka Reconsideration ~ecision." In his Request for 

Clarification, Mr. Rutaganda argues that this precedent should no{ be applied to his case as to do so 
I 

would be a rewactive adplication of law.I6 The Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that Mr. 

Rutagando's argument cogent reasons in the interest ok justice for the AppeK~ Chamber 

to dep& from the in the Niyitegeka cmL.17 Existing procedures for appeal 

and review set sufficient safeguard for due p a s s  and fairtrial:' 

f Accordingly, Mr. Rutag a's ~ e ~ u e s t  for Request for Clarification me 

dismissed. 

! B. h u e s t  for Review 

'7. h his Request for eviev, Mr. Rutaganda asks the Appehs Chamber for review of his final 4 
judgement based on seve* alleged new facts, which he claims hdermine his convictions and his i sentence." He submits d l e  ed new facts related to the events in Lyabaf sector and near the Amgv 

garage, the hnmngs of the Trial Chamber relating b his genoc{dd intent, and his sentence. With 

respect to his convictions /for other events, including the mass&xes at ETO and in Nyanq Mr. 
I 

Rutaganda asks the Appe Chamber to draw inferences from the alleged errors highlighted in his 

submissions that his on the basis of those events a~ Also questionable, and indicates his 

inrenrm file further review when additional new f a d  are discovered?' 

I I. Standard of Review 

8. Review are governed by M c l e  25 of the Si tu te  rad Rules 120 and 121 of the 

Rules. Review is an exceptional proced u4 e and is - not meant to provide an 

additional oppomnity parey to remedy its failings at trih or on appeal?' Review may be 
I .  granted only when the party satisfies the following cyulahve  criteria: (1) there is a new 

fact; (2) the new fact was ot known to the moving party at the dm0 of thc original proceedings; (3) 4 I 
the tack of discovery. of +t new fact was not the result of laik of due diligence by the moving 

Review Decision"). 

Case No. KTR-96-03-R 
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party; and (4) thenew fact could have been a decisive factor in reaching the original decision." In 

I 
wholly exceptional circumstances, the Appeals Chamber may grdnt review, even where the second 

or third criteria ilre not satisfied, if ignoring the new fact would rekult in a miscarriage of j~s t ice?~  

9. The Appeals Chamber recalls that a "new fact" refers to h w  information of an evidentiary 
I .  

nature of a fact that was not in issue during the trial or appeal ~ c e e d l n ~ s . ~ ~  By the phrase "not in 

issue", the Appeals Chamber has held that ' I t  must not have been among the factors that the. 

deciding body could have taken into account in reaching its verdict."25 In other words, what is 
I .  

relevant is whether the deciding body knew about the fact or not ip amving at the decision.'" 

2. Alle~ed New Facts relatin~r to ~ v a h k  Sector 

10. The Trial Chamber convicted Mr. Rutaganda, in part, for his role in distributing weapons to 

Inrcrahamwe on 8. 15, and 24 April 1994 in Cyahafi sector."' Mr. Rutaganda's role in distributing 
I 

weapons and the subsequent attacks in Cyahati sector forms part of his conviction for genocide and 

extermination as a crime against humanity?' Mr. Rutaganda aqealed the findings related to the 

distribution of weapons, challenging the notice provided in b e  Indichnent for three separate 

incidents of weapbns distribution as well as the credibility of &i tnes~es .~~  The Appeals Chamber 

rejected Mr. Rutaganda's ground of appeal against the Ma1 d b e r 3 n  factual findings?' 

11. In his Request for Review, Mr. Rutaganda points to sevkral alleged new facts that came to 

light in a ma1 judgement of a Rwandan court in the case of Theogbne Rutayisire ("Rutayi~ire 

Judgement") which, in his view, could have been a decisive faytor in his case with respect to the 

three incidents of weapons distribution on 8, 15, and 24 April i994 and the subsequent attacks in 

Cyahafi sector.31. The alleged new facts arising hrn the Rutayilire Judgement relate to the factual 
I 

findings on. the events in Cyahafi sector and the credibility ofi the wimesses in Mr. Rutaganda's 

case. I 

22 Niyitegeka Review Decision, paras 5-7. See nLro Blaikif Review Dccisian, para. 7; The Prosecutor v. Zorun &id. 
Case No. IT-98-3011-R.2. Decision on Zorau Zigicqr Requea for Revicw bdcr Rule 119, 25 August 2006, p m .  8 
("Zigid Rcvicw Decision"); The Prosccutorv. Ml& Radii, h e  NO. E-98-3011-R.1, Decision M Defence Rcqucst for 
Review, 31 Ombcr 2006, paras 9-11 ("RadiFKeview Decision"). 

Niyitrgh Rc"iew Decision, para. 7; 8lufkidReview Dwision, p m .  8; didRcv icw Decision, p m .  11; ?iu 
Prosmulor v. DuRo TudiF, Case No. JT-941-R. Decision on Rcqucst for ~ebiew,  30 July 2002, paras 26,27 ("Tadid 
Rcvicw Decision"). " Niyic~gehz Review Decision, para 6. See also Blaikii Review Decis io~  aru 14, 15; Tadif Review DcciYen, para 
25. 7 -- . 

I " Niyilegeh Review Decisioq p m .  6. See also Bldkid Review Decisioq pyas  14, 15; Tadid Review Decision, p m .  
2s. I -. . 
zd Bldk i t  Review Decisioq para. 14. 
" Rutaganda Trid Judgcmcnt, paras 195-201,385-386. 
21 Rutugundu Trid Jud~emcnt, psras 402.416. 
29 RuragandC( Appeal JudgemenL paras 294-341. 
30 Rutaganda Appeal Judgemcnb paras 306,315,321,331,338,340.341. 

Case No. ICTR-96-03-R 
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(a) Alleged New Facts Related to the Factual Findinps on the Events in Cvahafi Sector 

I 

12. Mr Rutagunda submits that the Rutayisire Judgemeit concans the same events as 

considered in his case related to the Cyahafi sector but provides 1 starkly different account than his 
I 

trial judgement of how and when these events unfolded and of who spearheaded them.?' According 

to Mr. Rutaganda, the Rutayisire Judgement refers to r single diskbution of weapons and attack on 

16 A p d  1994, and plwss blame for this on Michel Haragirimani ihe former conseiller of CyahaS 

~ e c t o r ? ~  Furthermore, Mr. Rutaganda points to wibess teskno,, cited in the Rutayisire 

Judgement, which do not mention him dishib&ing weapons .! Cyahafi sector or the following 

attacks for which he was c0nvicted.3~ 

13. The Rutayisire Judgement and the allegation that its fa&al findings are inconsistent with 

the findings of the Trial Chamber do not warrant review. Xn its Judgement, the Appeals Chamber I considered and rejected Mr. Rutaganda's claim that only one , ismbution and attack occurred in 

Cyahafi sector in April 1994" Momver, Mr. Rutaganda codccdes that throughou~ his trial he 

maintained that local authorities were responsible for the ddtribution of weapons in Cyahatl 
I .  

sector.36 Though the Rutayisire Judgement was not before the Tnal Chamber or the Appeals 

Chamber. the alleged factual errors in the Trial Chamber's Jud &nf which Mr. Rutaganda claims 

are illusaatcd by it, were considered or could have been taken d t o  account in rendering the verdict. 

Moreover. the Appeals Chamber does not consider the witnea~ea7 alleged failures to discuss Mr. 

Rutaganda's activities in a separate trial involving a different ac 1 used to constitute new facts for the 

purposes of review. As the Appeals Chamber has previously slated. 'lo suggest that if something 
I 

werc true a witness would have included it in a statement or a confession letter is obviously 
I 

speculative and, in general, it cannot substantiate a claim that a Trial Chamber erred in assessing the 

witness's crcdibi~it~."~' Accordingly, these alleged factual in onsistencies do not constitute new 

facts which would allow review. i 
(b) AUeeed New Facts Related to Wimess Credibtitv ! 
14. Mr. Rutaganda Brst points m alleged material incondistencies between the accounts of 

Witnesses T, J, and AA, whose evidence underlies his con?iction for these events, and their 1 

I Consolidated Xequesc par= 144190. Mr. Rutagauda provided a free y s l a t i o n  into French of the Kinymandn 
vcrsion of thc Rutaybire Judgemcnr The Rosecution docs nor contcst the manslation. 
'' Consolidated Rcquesr, paras 145-170. 
" Consolidated Request, paras 147,152-154, 159, 161,163. 
'* Consolidated Request, p a s  154-156. 
3s Ruta~mda A m o l  Yud~elnenL ~aran 339-341. - '' ~ o n s & d a l c d ~ e ~ u e s t ,  para. 154. " Jw411al Knjelijcli v. The Pmsecuror, Case No. ICR-98-44A-A, 23 May 2005, px.% 176 ("Kajelijrli 
Appt;al Judgement"). I 
Case No. ICTR-96-034 5 
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1 39 Interdmmwe and for distributing weapons and directing the attacks. 

apparent statements before Rwandan authorities in the Rutayisire 

15. Second, Mr. Rutaganda refers to other credibility issues h c h  surface from the Rutayisire 

Judgement. including findings on the general lack of credibi,'ty h of these three witnesses, the 

427M 
case.m Mr. Rutaganda notes that, 

possible perjury of Witnesses J and AA, and the possible role ihese two witnesses played in the 
I 

unlike in his tri& these witnesses implicated Thiogkne Rutayisire, mher than him as the head of the 

crimes. In particular, Mr. Rutaganda notw that the Rutayisire ludkemmt held the testimony of these 

individuals to be con~adictor/ and ~nreliablc!~ Furthermore, 'MI. Ruraganda highlights that in his 

case, Witnesses J and AA denied providing testimony before a& other authority involving him or 

the crimes in Cyahati sector.41 Mr. Rutaganda nbtes, howcv&, that the Rutayisire Judgement 
I 

reflects that these witnesses provided pro justitia statements to @wandan authorities prior to their 
I testimony in his case before the ~ribunal.~' Finally, Mr. Rutaganda submits that the Rutayisire 
I 

Judgement reveals that Witnesses I and AA were part of a drime syndicate during the period 

relevant to Mr. Rutaganda's convictions and thus were accomp 4 ces whose testimony should have 

been viewed with caution." 

I 16. The Appeals Chamber notes that Mr. Rutaganda's arguments pertain to witness credibility, 
1 . 1 4  which was heavily litigated throughout the proceedings in his case. Nonetheless, the Prosecution 

does not dispute that the points raised by Mr. Rutaganda related /o witness credibility are new facts 

or that he lacked awareness of them during the original proceedings. Rather it takes issue with Mr. 

Rutsgmda7s diligence in raising these matters and further asse/ts that none of these points could 

17. In assessing the credibility of Witnesses T, S, and AA, d e  TTrial Chamber and, subsequently 

have impacted the outcome in his case." Additionally, it argued that the findings in the Rutayisire 

the Appeals Chamber, were not aware that these witnesses abparently gave such statements to 

Rwandan authorities on the distribution of weapons and the c 'nal responsibility for anacks in t 

case are not bincling on rhe Tribunal and that Mr. Rutaganda's 

committed perjury is not supported by a review of the record.46 

Consolidated Request, paras 146, 147, 154 157, 163, 178-190 Mr. Ru$mda notes that W r u s  T, I and AA 
never appeared bcfore Ulo bid coim iu Kigali, &spite its repcatcd cffmts to hbtaio thek testimony, because they would 
have been publicly disavowed. Consolidated Rcquest, paras 17%181 (tiring Judgement). 
l9 Consolidated Request, paras 147,152,157, 163. * Consolidated Request. paras 157,159,163. 

Cmolidutcd Rcqttcst. paras 158. 182-185. 
42 Consolidalcd Rcqucst, pars 183,185. " Consolidated Rcqucst, pwas 178,187. 

m. W. 

See Ruraganda Trial Judgement, paras 195-201, 226, 227,252-261; Judgement, paras 307-341, 
345-396. See also The Prorecuror v Georges Rvtupnda. Case No. 963- 1 Dcfcnsc Appeal Brief, 1 May 2001, pnrts 4 

assertion that Witnesses J and AA 

*4-. - Consolidated Response, paras 125, 126. 
"Consolidated Response. paras 127, 128, 133, 

Cue No. ICTR-96-03-R 6 
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Cyahafi sector. Therefore, these statements were not in issue during the trial or appeals proceedings, 

and thus constitute new facts. The Appeals Chamber also accepts that Mr. Rutaganda was not aware 

of these statements during the origind proceedings given his undisputed submissions that he only 

recently discovered the Rutayisire ~udgement." 

18. Nonetheless, the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that Mr. Rutaganda acted with the 

requisite diligence in discovering and bringing these issues forward. Mr. Rutaganda explains that he 

became aware of the Rutqisire Judgement only by chance when reviewing a volume of Rwandan 

trial judgements." Mr. Rutaganda submits that he could not have obtained the judgement earlier 

given security concerns, which prevented his counsel from undertaking investigations in ~wanda .~ '  

Moreover, he notes that the Prosecution would have been fully aware of the Rutayisire case given 

the overlap in witnesses and events, and that it thus failed to disclose this information to him, 

preventing him from learning about it sooner?* 

19. The Appeals Chamber does not find Mr. Rutaganda's explanation concerning his diligence 

convincing. The Rwandan trial court conducted proceedings in the Rutflyisire case from January 

1998 and pronounced its judgement on 22 February 1999.~' At this same time, Mr. Rutaganda was 

engaged in trial proceedings before this ~ribunal.5~ The Rwandan trial court rendered the Rutayisire 

Judgement almost ten months before Mr. Rutaganda's trial judgement and nearly three and a half 

years before the Appeals Chamber heard oral arguments in his appellate Mr. 
Rutaganda's explanation that security concerns prevented his counsel from traveling to Rwanda is 

both unsupported and unpe~suasive. To the extent that there is any validity to Mr. Rutaganda's 

claims, it was incumbent on his counsel to request a stay of the proceedings until appropriate 

arrangements could have been made to underrake any necessary investigations in Rwanda. In other 

words, Mr. Rutagimda had the burden to exhaust all measures afforded by the Statute and RuIes to 

obtain the presentation of this evidence.54 Mr. Rutaganda has not demonstrated that he has done so. 

At this late stage, the Appeals Chamber will not accept a claim that unspecified security concerns 

rendered the possible credibility issues arising from the Rufnyisire case undiscoverable or 

inaccessible despite an exercise of due diligence. Moreover, Mr. Rutaganda has not demonstrated 

that the Prosecution was in possession or even aware of the Rurayisire Judgement. 

67 See Consolidated Response, para. 114. 
'~onsolidated Request, para. 114. 
" Consolidalcd RcqucsL para. 120. 
5%onsolidated Request, para, 118. 
51 Conaolidatcd RcqucQ Anncx IV. 
52 Mr. Rutaganda first appeared before thc Tribunal on 30 May 1996. His trial opened on 18 March 1997. The defencc 
case commenced on 8 February 1999. His uial mdcd on 17 June 1999. See Rutagandn Trial Judgement, paras 7, 8, 11: 
Rutqunda Appeal Judgement, pua. 5. 

Care No. ICTR-96-03-R 
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20. In addition, the Appeals Chamber is not satistied that this case presents wholly exceptional 

circumstances warranting review. In light of the finding of lack of due diligence, the Appeals 

Chamber may grant review only if ignoring the new facts would result in a miscarriage of justice.55 

In this case, the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that the Rutayisire Judgement can definitively 

establish the credibility issues advanced by Mr. Rutaganda. Fist, the Rutayisire Judgement results 

from a separate proceeding against a different accused.56 Second, the pre-trial statements, which 

these witnesses apparently provided to thc ~ w a i d a n  authorities, are only alluded to in the 

Rutcryisire Judgement and are not relied upon as establishing its findings. As Mr. Rutaganda notes, 

the three witnesses did not in fact appear as wimesses in the R~rtuyisire case.s7 

21. Moreover, even assuming that the Rutayisire Judgement could cast suflicient doubt on the 

evidence of Witnesses T, J, and AA, rhe Appeals Chamber is not convinced that this would disturb 

the finding of Mr. Rutaganda's culpability for the distribution of weapons and subsequent attacks in 

Cyah& sector. Firsr. the Trial Chamber did not rely on the evidence of Witness AA in making 

findings on these events. Moreover, the testimonies of Witnesses J and T underlie the findings for 

the distributions of weapons on 15 and 24 April 1994, respectively?8 The Trial Chamber did not 

rely on any of these impugned witnesses, however, in support of its findings that Mr. Rutaganda 

distributed weapons on 8 April 1994'~ and thus, the findings for this event would remain 

undisturbed. Second, the Appeals Chamber considers that Mr. Rutaganda's conviction and life 

sentence equally and independently rest on his role in the massacres at ETO and in Nyimza, which 

do not rely on the evidence of these witnesses. In particular, the A p p d s  Chamber recalls that it 

declined to revisit Ivlr. Rutaganda's life sentence, after quashing a conviction of murder in his 

appeal, noting in particular the gravicy of the events in Nyanza alone.60 Therefore, granting review 

based on the alleged credibility issues related ro Witnesses T, J, and AA relating to the dis~butions 

of weapons and macks in Cyahafl sector would not alter the fidings related to Mr. Rutaganda's 

role in the attacks at ETO and in Nyanza and, ultimately, his convictions and life sentence for 

"Mr. Rutagmdn's nial judgement was rendered on 6 December 1999, and the Appcnls Chamber heard argumcnrs on 4 
and 5 July 2002. See RutagMdn A p p 4  Judgcmcn~ paras 5.9. 
54 See, e.6.. The Prosecuror v. Dufko Tadif, k e  No. IT-94-1-A, Judgement. 15 October 1999, paras 52,53,55. 
55 Niyiregeka Rcvicw Decision, para. 7; Radif Revicw Decision, para. 11; TadKReview Decision. paras 26.27. 
56 See elso T k  Prosecutor v. Ci2mnf Kayisherw and Obed Ru~indnna Case No. ICTR-95-1-A, Judgement, 1 June 
2001. para. 143 ("two judges, both acting reasonably, can come ta different conclusions on h e  basis of the same 
evidence") ("Kayishcma and Ruzindnna Appwl Judgement"). " C o n s o l i ~  RcqucsL p m .  180. The Roscculio~ howcvq sccms lo suggost8 that Witness T in fact appeared at the 
lrial in Rwanda. See Consolidated Res~onse. Data. 129. The Prosccunon's contention. however. does not amear to be . . 
supported by the wxt of the Rutuyuirc lujgemen~ '* ~utafiundu Tnd Judeemcnt. oaris 176-180.193.197. 199. . . " The'bistribution of ~ e a ~ p o n s o n  8 A@ 1694 is based oa the evidence of Wirncss U. Rutaganda Trial Judgement, 
pilns 188-192, 198. Moreover, thc Trial Chambtx also n o d  thc evidence of Wirness Q, which it found reliab1e, who 
tesrified that it was common howledge that Mr. Rutaganda dismbulcd weapons. Rutagada Trial Judgement, pwas 
194, 195. 
M See Rutagmda Appcal Judgement, para. 592. In particular, thc A p p d s  Chamber recalled that, of the 4,000 persons 
in Nyanzk only approximately 200 survived the massacre. 
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genocide, crimes against humanity, and serious violations of Article 3 common to the Geneva 

Conventions. 

22. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Mr. Rutmganda's Request for Review based 

on the new facts related to thc events in Cyahafi sector. 

3. Alle~ed New Facts Related to the Amgar Garage 

23. The Trial Chamber convicted Ivlr. Rutaganda for genocide and crimes against humanity, in 

part, based on his role in the detention and killing of Tutsis in the vicinity of his offices ar the 

Amgar garage.61 Mr. Rutaganda appealed these findings, primarily challenging the Trial Chamber's 

assessment of the underlying evidence of Wimesses Q, T, and BB.~' The Appeals Chambtx rejected 

Mr. Rutaganda's appeaLs3 

24. Mr. Rutaganda seeks review of his convictions based again on alleged new facts arising 

from the Rutayisire Judgement, which he submits could have been decisive in considering the 

factual findings for the events related to Amgar garage.64 In particular, Mr. Rutaganda points to the 

credibility issues impacting Witnesses T and AA, as discussed a b ~ v e . ~  He also notes that no 

witness in the Rutayisire case, despite proximity and familiarity with the area, mentions the killing 

of Tutsis near the Amgar garage or Mr. Rutaganda's responsibility for crimes committed in that 

area. 66 

25. h addition, Mr. Rutaganda points to affihvifs supplied by Mr. Amadou D&&, a former 

intelligence officer with the United Nations Assistance Mission in Rwanda ('VNAMIR"),~ 

according to which the Amgar garage appeared to be an ordinary place of bu~iness.~' Mr. 

Rutaganda notes that Mr. DBmE's observations concerning the Amgar garage further call into 

question the credibility of witness accounts about the crimes which occurred there.69 

26. The Appeals Chamber does not consider that the alleged silence of wimesses in the 

Rutayisire case with respect to. Mr. Rutaganda's activities at the Amgar garage or Mr. DBmB's 

observations duTing a brief visit to the Amgar garage amount to new facts?' The Appeals Chamber 

observes that Mr. Rutaganda presented similar evidence concerning the lackof prisoners at the 

6' Rutaganda Trial Judgement, p m s  228-261,388,389,406. 
M Rutagunda Appeal Judgement, p a m  342-396. " Ruuganda Appoal Jud-eat. paras 359.368,376,379.384,392,396. 
€4 Consolidated Kequest, paras 171-177. 
65 Consolidared Kequesf paras 1 7 2  178-181, 18+190. 
€6 Consolidated Request, p m  173-176. 
6) 

e 
&n~didaCed Request, paras 112 191-209, Exhibit V. 
Consolidsled Rcqwsr, paras 204,205. 

@ Consolidated Rcqucst, pams 208,209. '' Cf: Krjelijeli Appcal Judgement, para 176. 
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Amgar garage during his trial.71 Thus, this is not a new facc as it was in issue during 'his original 

proceedings?z Moreover, for the reasons set forth above, the Appeals Chamber is also not satisfied 

that the alleged credibility issues advanced by Mr. Rutaganda with respect to Prosecution Witnesses 

T and AA warrant review.73 

27. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Mr. Rutaganda's request for review bped on 

the allegzd new facts related to the events at Amgar garage. i 
4. h1ep.d ~ e w  Facts Related to Crenocidal Intent 

28. Mr. Rmganda review of the findings on his genocidal inrent on the basis of the 

alleged new facts several affidavits supplied by Arnadou DCmt and Ambassador 

Clayton Yaache, of UNAMIR's Humanitarian Affairs Cell ("Dem.5 Affidavits" and 

'Yaache Mr. Rutaganda submits that the new facts contained in these 

affidahts could have a decisive role in the Trial Chamber's findings on his genocidal 

intent.75 The Dim6 recount Mr. Rutaganda's role in negotiating the safe passage and 

evacuation of refugees f ro4 the HBtel des Milk  Coilines la RPP held lantocy on 3 May 1994." 

According to his afidavits/ Mr. Demt sought and received Mr. Rutaganda's urgent assistance to 

prevent an imminent mass re of the refugees by a mob of assailants during the evacuation at gear i personal danger to Mr. ~ u t a ~ a n d a ? ~  The Yaache Affidavit corroborates Mr. Dim.5'~ account of Mr. 
I 

Ruraganda's rolc during td tr:msfe~: of refugees and concludes that Mr. Rutagandn played o "key 

role" in saving the lives of e  evacuee^.^' In addition, Mr. Rutaganda points to a statement, signed 

by him and broadcast on R d k  'o Rwanda on 25 April 1994, wherein he appealed for calm.79 

I 

I 

" Rufagar~lu Tdd Judgcrncnt, p/ras 239-241. 
" Niyitegsktr Review Decision, ara. 6. See also TadiKeview DGcisio~ para. 25 T Furlhcrmo~~, the Appeals C h a m h m a l l s  that thc Trial Chnmber r h c d  to rcly on Witness AA's testimony when it 
determined Lhe evidence insuffil.cnl ro Support the charge that Mr. Rutazanda stariomd Intertrhamwe at a road block 
near the c n h n w  of the Arndg j r age .  F e  Trial JudgcmCnl, paras 205. 209-211, 219, 225, 226. Addihnally, he 
Appeals Chnmber ignored pravlded by Witness AA when it 0veI't~mcd Ulc Trial Chamber's fmks thu Mr. 
Rutaganda killed See Appeal Judgement, paras 490-506. Thus, smling Witness AA's testimony 

convictions relatcd 10 lrillings at the Amgar garagc. 
Exhibits V, VI. 

29. In the Appeals ~ h h b e r ' s  view, We Dim6 and Yaache Affidavits as well as the Radio 

'' Consolidated ~ e q u c s i  &as 442, 243,244. 
'O See The Prosecuror v. H u z i ~  Deli6 Casc No. IT-9621-R-R119, Decision on Motion for Rcviow. 25 April 2002, 
para. 11 ("If the material uraffezed consirls of additional evidcncc r e l ahe  To a fact which was in issue or considered in 

Rwanda broadcast simply 

therefore, fail ro provide a 

ihe original proceedings, [his do nol conslirurc a 'new fad [...I, and the;eview procedure is not avail;rhle."). k 

constitute additional evidence of issues previously considered and, 

basis upon which review may be granted.'' Mr. Rutaganda testified at 

Case No. TCTR-96-03-R 10 8 Deccmbn 2006 



08/12 '06 16:59 FAX 0031705128932 I CTR m012 

422lH 
length during his trial his role in the evacuation of the refugees from the H6tel As Milk 

~ o ~ i n e s . 8 '  In addition, Mr Rutaganda challenged the reasonableness of the Trial Chamber's 1 
findings on his genocidal in ent on appeal pointing to evidence of his assistance to Tutsis during 

thi,s period.82 The Appeals ber recalls that, in concluding that Mr. Rutaganda had genocidal 

intent, the Trial Chamber e phasized his direct participation in the widespread attacks and killings 
+= 

committed against Tutsis who were systematically selected for killing because of their ethr~icity.'~ 

The Appeals Chambet d i s k s e d  Mr. Rumganda's challedge to tke findings on his genocidal 

intensp4 bearing in mind th evidence and arguments related to his assistance to Tutsis during this 4 
period."5 The Appeals Chamber recalls the view it expressed at the time: "a reasonable tder of fact 

ab could very well not take count of some of the illustrations provided by the Appellant, which 

appear immaterial within context of the numerous atrocities systematically and deliberately t 
perpetrated against members of the hetsi 

30. Accordingly, Chamber finds that Mr. Rutaganda's assistance to UNAMIR on 

behalf of the refugees a1 H6t.d des Milk Collines and his appeal for calm on 25 A p d  1994 do 

not constitute new facts the purposes of review because the issues raised by this material were 

considered during his 

5. Alle~ed New Facts Related to Sentencing 

31. Mr. Rutaganda also seeks review of his sentence based on a number of alleged procedural 

irregularities which he s bmits could have impacted his senten~e.~' The Appeds Chamber 

addresses each in turn. I 
(a) Alleeed IlIeeal ~etendinn 

32. Mr. Rutaganda seeks review OF his sentence based on an alleged 171-day period of illegal 
I 

detention following his initial arrest in ~ambia.'' He claims that, despite having received asylum in 
I 

Zambia, Zambian s arrested him on immigration charges on 10 October 1995, verbally 

informing him at his arrest of the Tribunal's interest in prosecuting him.g0 He notes that 

" T. 22 April 1999 pp.'63-80. 1 
'' Rutugandu Appeal 
" Rutagnnh Trial Judgement, Dirr;t. 399. 
" Rutugrvrdu Appeal Judgemen pans 530.531. 'r " Rutagnnrlu Appeal Jndgemen paras 532537. 
u Rutngmdn Appeal Judgemen$ para. 537. See dxo  The Prmecutur v. Miroslnv KvoEkn el uL, Case N o  IT-98-301b.4 

Appeal Judgement, 28 Febru 2005, paris 232-233 (noting mat cvidcncc of political ldcrancc. aITiiation with 
Muslims, and belng married tOyMylim w.ulp not preclude a reasonable mm of h c t  in lighr OI all the evidence. from 
Gnding that the accused held a s p l f i c  d~scnrmnstory vltent toward Muslims). 
" Niyitegekn Review Decision. Tadid Review Decision, para. W 

Cansolidawd Request, paras 

Cuse No. ICTR-9G-03-R 11 8 Dccember 2006 
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on 22 November 1995, the filed a request under Rule 40 of the ~ u l e s  to provisionally 

detain him for ninety days and the c o n h a t i o n  of an indictment?' Mr. 

Rutaganda explains that Zambian judge ordered the release of other 

Rwandans arrested with confirming the illegality of their arrest!' Mr. Rutaganda submits, 

however, that he detained until 29 March 1996, when the Prosecution provided 

hunwith his 1 
33. Invoking the Appeal Chamber decisions in the Barayagwiza, Sernanza, and Kajelijeli cases, 

Mr. Rutaganda submits this violation would have had an impact on his sentence had it been 

adduce3 at triaLg4 He arg lfe , s that he has not raised rhis issue until now due to professional 

negligence on the part of his counsel who failed to challenge the ilIega1 detention at the outset of the 

proceedings md who also flied to make sentencing submissions." 
I 

34. The Appeals Cham& recalls that Mr. Rutaganda first raised allegations of illegal detention 

in his Notice of Appeal? d d  umrdingly this allegation does not constitute a new fact, as it could 

have been taken into acc unt in the Appeals Chamber's j~~d~ernent .~ '  However, while this 
I 

allegation was raised in the hotice of Appeal, it was not addressed in his appeal brief. In addition, 
I 

during the appeals . Rutaganda's counsel confirmed that he had abandoned his appeal 

against the this argument has been waived.Qy Moreover, MT. Rutaganda 

has failed to demonstrate that his counsel's decision to withdraw this argument on appeal 

constitutes professional nqgligence that would result in a miscarriage of justice. In such 

circumstances, the Appeals kharnber declines to consider this issue further. 

" Consolidated RequcsL pma 134. 
Consolidakd Rcgucs~ para. 137. 

P3 Consolidalod Requcs& para 136. 
wConsolidatcd Rcquest. paras 13 
95Cons01idatcd R q t ,  paras 13 

Anwl") .  
The Prosecuror v. Ceorgrs uraganda, Casc No. 96-3-A, Acte d'Appel, 26 January 2000, para. 5 ("Notice of 7 - -rr-- ,. '' Niyitqeku Review Decision, &ara. 6. See also TadiCRevicw Dccisioq para. 25. 

"See Rutaganda Appeal Judge I, pant 586, n. 1081. 
"See, cg., Eli4zer Niyitegeku v. The Prosecutor, Case No. 96-14-A, Judgement, 9 July 2004, para. 199 ("In general 'a t pwty should not be permitted to refrain from making an objectinn ro n matter which was apparcnr during the c o r n  of 
the bkl, and 10 raise it in lhe eveht of M adverse finding against rhaa party.' Failure lo object in the Trial Chmbcr will 
usually m l t  in tho Appeals ~1jm1t-w disrcgdng fhc argumcnt on grounds of waiver."), quocing Kayishemn and 
RirrinJana Appeal Judgement. p 91. The Appcals Chamber observes that Mr. Baray~wiza, Mr. Sunanza, and Mr. 
Kajelijeli each challenged their u I? awful dctenlion ai h c  ea~li~st oppo10miry. See, e-g.. lean-Borco Borqagwiza v. The 
Prommdor, Decision. 2 ~ovender  1999, paras 3, 8; Iaurcnt Semanza v The Prorecutor, Case No.  ICTR-97-20-A, 
Decision. 31 May 2000, paras id 17, 114-121: The Prorecuror v Jnvind Kajelijeli, Casc No. ICI'R-98114-1, Dccision r. on the Defence Motion Concam: the Arbitray Arrest and Illcgd Dclcndon of the Accused and on the D c h c e  
Notice of Urgent Mouon ro ~ x ~ a h d  and Supplement the Record oT the 8 Dcccmber 1999 Hearing, 8 May 2000. 

Care No. ICTR-96-03-R 12 8 Deccrnbcr 2006 
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(b) AUeged ~isclosurk Violations 

35. Mr. Rutagmda points to other procedural irregularities in his case, which in his view could 

impact on his sentence.'" He submits that the Prosecution failed to disclose the Ruiayisire 

Judgement as well as interviews with Michel Haragirirnana and Joseph Setiba which are allegedly 

ex~ul~atory. '~ '  He argues that, according to information in his possession, the Prosecution had 

custody of this material.lm In addition, he complains that the Prosecution failed to disclose a 

transcript of his Radio Rwanda statement, dated 25 April 1994, in which he appealed for calm?03 

As discussed above, Mr. Rutaganda claims that this transcript would have negated his genocidal 

intent.lo4 

36. To establish a violation of the Rule 68 disclosure obligation, the Defence must: (1) establish 

that addifional material exists in the possession of the Prosecution; and (2)  present a prima facie 

case that the material is exculpatory.'" hitially, a s  the Prosecution Mr. Rutagmda has 

not demonstrated that the Prosecution was in possession of the Rutayirire Judgement at any relevant 

point or that it is in possession of exculpatory statements of Michel Haragirirnana and Joseph 

Setiba. The Appeals Chamber recalls that Rule 68 does not impose an obligation on the Prosecution 

to search for material of which it does not have kn~wledge.'~' 

37. - With regards to the Radio Rwanda transcript dated 25 April 1994, the Appeals Chambor 

finds that the Prosecution failed to Wll its obligation under Rule 68 to make appropriate 

disclosure of material in its custody. Mr. Rutaganda's submissions indicate that this transcript was 

transcribed on 21 January 2000 and was disclosed by the Prosecution in several other cases before 

the ~ r i b u n a l . ' ~ ~  Thc Prosecution does not dispute this or that the transcript could have included 

material tending to exculpate Mr. ~ u t a g a n d a . ~ ~ ~  The Prosecution offers no explanation as to why it 

failed to disclose this material to Mr. Rutaganda. The Appeals Chamber recalls that the Prosecution 

I" Consolidated RequesL paras 219-249. 
I"' Consolidated Request, paras 233,234,246,247. '" Consolidared Rcques~ paras 246.247. 
IM Consolidated kques i  paras 243,245. 
lW Consolidated Request, paras 242-245. '" Kajelljeli Appeal Judgement, para. 262. 
1UG Prosecutor's Response. paras 143, n. 188. 145. 
Irn The Pro~ecrraor v. Miroslav Bmlo, Case NO. 95-17-A. Decision on Motions for Access to Ex Pane Portions of thc 
Record on Appeal and for Disclosure of Mitigating Material, 30 August 2W6, para 30 ("Bralo Appeal Decision"). 
However, the Prosecution must actively review the mahrial in its possession Em exculpatory matmid. See The 
Prosecutor v. Ecbuard K a r m r a  ct al., Case No. ICTR-98-44AR73.7. Decision on Interlocutory Appeal Regarding 
the Role uf rhe Rosecum's Elecmnic Disclosure Suite in Discharging Disclosure Obligations, 30 June 2006, paras 9, 
10 ("Karcmera et al. Appeal Decision"). 
'" Consolidated ReqwsL para 242. 
''IV Prosecutor's Response. p m .  144. 

Case No. ICTR-96-03-R 13 8 Dcccmbm 2006 
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has a positive and continuous obligation under Rule 68 of the ~ules."%e Appeals Chamber finds 

that the Prosecution acted in violation of its obligation to disclose in this case. However, even when 

the Appeals Chamber is satisfied that the Prosecution has failed to comply with its Rule 68 

obligations, it will examine whethex the Defence has actually been prejudiced by such failure before 

considering whether a remedy is appropriate."' For the reasons mentioned above in considering 

Mr. Rutaganda's request for review of the finding on his genocidal intent, the Appeals Chamber 

does not consider that the Prosecution's failure warrants a remedy that would &pact on Mr. 

Rutaganda's sentence. Thus, the Appeals Chmber denies Mr. Rutaganda's request for review of his 

sentence based on this disclosure violation. However, the Prosecution should take this as a clear 

warning that, in the future, the Appeals Chamber may impose appropriate sanctions should it be 

found to be in viohtion of its Rule 68 obligation. 

(c) Alleeed Presentation of False Evidence 

38. Mr. Rutaganda also claims that the Prosecution presen~d false evidence in his case."2 He 

points to Prosecution exhibits related to the geographic and topographical aspects of the Amgar 

garage and its surrounding area, which he claims do not comport with reality."3 In addition, he also 

refers to an 11 January 1994 cable sent by General Romk Dalliare to the United Nations 

headquarters in New York providing an assessment, based on his intelligence sources, that the 

Interahamwe was organized, armed, and prepared to kill up to one thousand Tutsis within a t w w  

minute Mr. Rutaganda explains that this evidence was tendered by the Prosecution 

through an expert witness Professor Filip ~eyntjens."~ Mr. Rutaganda points to recent defence 

evidence in the Bagosora et a1. trial, which he claims undermines the credibility of this exhibit.'16 

The Prosecution rejects Mr. Rutaganda's allegations as unsupported by evidence.'" 

39. The Appeds Chamber considers that Mr. Rutaganda has failed to provide an evidentiq 

basis to support his allegations that the hosecution presented falsified evidence at trial.""he 

Appeals Chamber also notes that Mr. Rutaganda has not identified any finding related to his 

"' Kare~nem rt aL Appcal Decisio3 para. 10. See also Ferdinand Nuhimma e t a [  v The Prosecuror, Case No. 99-52- 
A, Decision on Appellant Jm-Bosco Barayagwiza's Motion Requeshg that the Prosecution DiscIosure of lhc 
$;erview of Michd Bagaragazn Be Expunged from thc Rccord, 30 October 2006, par@. 6. 

See, e-g., Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, pars. 262; The Prnrecutor v. Radirlav Krrli.5. Casc No. IT-98-33-A, 
Judgcmcng 19 April 2004, para. 153; Bralo Appeal Decision, para 31. 
'I2 Consolidated Request, par* 219-231. 
' I 3  Collsolidated Request, paras 219-223. 
"' Conrdidarcd Rcqucs~, paras 224-227. 
'I5 Cm~soklat~d Request, punt 224. 
'I6 Consolidawd RUlUeq pam 228-231. 
"' Consolidarcd Response, paras 139, 140,141, 142. 
"%e Appeals Chamber not~s  rhat Mr. Rutaganda hns submimd sketches. which he argues highlight the irregularities 
of the Prosecution exhibits. In thc Appcals Chamber's view, Mr. Rutagmda's sketches ate merely extensions of his 
nrgument and fail to provide evidentivy support for his clnim. 
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criminal responsibility implicated by these assertions. Additionally, Mr. Rutaganda's submissions 

seek to re-litigate the authenticity and credibility of evidence and do not present new facts upon 

which review may be granted. Accordingly, these arguments do not warrant review. 

C. Request for Assirmment of Counsel 

40. In his Request for Assignment of Counsel, Mr. Rutaganda asks the Appeals Chauiber to 

direct the Registrar to assign Ms. Sarah Bihegue as his counsel under the Tribunal's legal aid 

system in order to assist him in pursuing postconviction relief."' In support of this request, he 

argues chat rhis assignment of counsel is in the interest of justice given the demands of his case.''' 

Furthermore, Mr. Rutaganda alleges that, in violation of Article 82 of the Rules of Detention, the 

Tribunal has frustrated his attempts to freely communicate with counsel of his choice, who has 

agreed to represent him on apro bono basis, notwithstanding his repeated pleas to the Registrar and 

the President to grant access.'*' JJI the alternative, he requests the Appeals Chamber to order the 

Registrar to allow him unimpeded access to counsel of his choice who has agreed to represent him 

on a pro born basis.'" 

41. The Appeals Chamber recalls that review is an exceptional remedy and that an applicant is 

only entitled to assigned counsel, at the Tribunal's expense, if the Appeals Chamber authorizes the 

Nonetheless, counsel may be assigned at the preliminary examination stage, normally for 

a very limited duration, i f  it is necessary to ensure the fairness of the proceedings.'24 Mr. Rutaganda 

has already made extensive and detailed submissions supported by a number of exhibits in his 

Request for Review. The Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that additional briefing would be of 

assistance in the present inquiry. In such cimgmtances, Mr. Rutaganda's Request for Review does 

not warrant the assignment of counsel under the auspices of the Tribunal's legal aid system. 

42. Nonetheless, as a general matter, Mr. Rutaganda may be assisted by counsel in connection 

with a request fm review at his own expense or on a pro born basis provided the counsel files a 

power of attorney with the Registrar and satisfies the requirements to appear before the Tribunal. 

The Registry informed Mr. Rutaganda of this in its letter dated 21 October 2004, explaining that his 

former counsel could contact him.'25 Thcreafter, Mr. Rutaganda filed a notice to the Deputy 

Consolidated Request, paras 250,266 (see also prayer for relieipara. S). 
'2~onsolidared Request, pm& 264. 
"I CowoIidstcd Rcqucst, paras 252-263. 

Con~olidakd R ~ U G S I ,  p a y u  rm relief pma. S. 
Eliizer Niyitegeka v. The Prosecutor, Case No. 96-144, Decision on Niyitepelca's Urgent Request for Legal 

Assistawe, 20 June 2M)S ("Niyitepeka Counsel Decision"). 
"* Niyilegeka Counscl Decision. 
" The Rerisrrv informcd M r  R u m e d  01 as much in its letter to him dared 21 October 2004. cxdaininc h t  his - - 
fomm counsel could conlaur him. Consolidated Request Annex XVI (Letter from Aminarta N'~&I, .4c& Chief 
of the Tribunal's Dekncr Counsel and Dercndon Management Sectiow to Mr. Rutaganrla, dated 21 Ocrobcr 2004). 
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Registrar indicating that he had retained his former counsel to assist him.'26 Even putting aside that 

Rule 44(A) of the Rules refers to the counsel filing a power of attorney, Mr. Rutaganda has not 

pointed to any instance after that point where he was denied access to his counsel.'" The Appeals 

Chamber funher observes that, in his request, he refers to the pro bono assistance which he received 

from his former counsel during this period,12s Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber declines u, 

consider further Mr. Rutaganda's alleged violations of his right to communicate with counsel. In 

any event, as a general rule, such matters should f is t  and foremost be addressed by the ~eg.istr2i . '~~ 

D. Reauest for Disclosure 

43. In his Request for Disclosure, Mr. Rutaganda seeks the disclosure of the full identity and 

unredacted statements of all Prosecurion witnesses called in his case, which he submits was not 

done or, at least, not done in a timely fashion.130 In addition, he requests the Appeals Chamber to 

order the Prosecution to search fm statements made by these witnesses before Rwandan judicial 

authorities and to disclose such statements to him.I3' In this respect, Mr. Rutaganda notes that the 

Prosecution has carried out similar searches in other ca~es . "~  

44. The Prosecution responds that it provided Mr. Rutagmda with unredacted copies of 

statements and the full identities of the witnesses at the time of their testimony in accordance with 

the Trial Chamber's witness protection order.133 Moreover, it submits that it does not possess any 

exculpatory statements made by witnesses in the Rutagaluia case before Rwandan authorities. It 

further argues that it has no obligation to obtain such material from R ~ a n d a . ' ~  

45. The Appeals Chamber considers that Mr. Rutaganda's request for disclosure lacks merit. 

The Trial Chamber concluded that the Prosecution had fulfilled its obligations to disclose witness 

Consolidated Request, pora. 261, Exhibit XVIII. 
12' Mr. Rutagwda refcrs to an incident in March 2005. However, his correspondence refers to a communication with his 
siskr. See C o n s o l i ~ c d  Rcqucst, pam 262, Exhibit XIX. '" See Consolidated RequesL para. 114 (noting that the D& and Yanche Affidnvits w e e  obtained as a resulr of the 
'persistent and voluntary reseitrch canied out by his formcr Defence team"). 
' "~f: The Prosecutor v. Zeljko Mrjakid el 01.. Case No. IT-02-65-AR73.1, Decision on Apped by thc Rosccution lo 
Rcsolvc ConRicr or Inlmst Rcgyding Attorney Sovan Sirnib, 6 October 2004, para. 7 ("The Registrar has the primary 
responsibility of cletermininp m a m s  relating to thc assignment of come1 under the legal aid system."). 
130 equest for Disclosure, paras 5, 11-35. 

Request for Disclosure, paras 5,3640. 
132 lo this respcc~ Mr. Rutaganda points ro the case of Hasan Ngeze where the Prosecution obtained statements made 
before a Gacaca proceeding of Witness EB. Sae Request for Disclosure, para. 39. In Annex D to the Request for 
Disclosure, Mr. Rutaganda submi& the cover page of this confidential disdosurc. The Prosecution argues Lhal this 
constitmes a brench of the witness protection order in Mr. Ngczc's casc and asks lho Appeals Chamber m order b e  
Prosecution to investigate this alleged brcach for contcmpr. See Response to Disclosurr. Requesr, p ;u i  20. 22. The 
Appeals Chamber, however, declines to issue such an order. The Appeals Chamber observes that Annex D, submitted 
by Mr. Rutaganda, is simply a cover page related to the disclosure and conlains no idenlirying inionnation. Mr. 
Ruaganda assorlr that hc did not rcccivc any potected information. Reply to Disclosure Request, para. 27. Based on 
the material before it, the Appeals Chamber sccs no rcason to question this averment. 
'" Response to Disclosure Request. para 4 8-16. 
134 Response to Disclosure Request, paras 4, 17-22. 
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statements and identifying ~naterial."~ To the extent that this conclusion was erroneous or that the 

modalities for disclosure were objectionable, it was Mr. Rutaganda's prerogative to bring this issue 

to the attention of the Trial Chamber in the first instance and, if necessary, to raise it on 

The Appeals Chamber declines to consider such complainE in review proceedings. As the Appeals 

Chamber previously held, the Prosecution has no obligation to obtain judicial material related to its 

witnesses fFom Though the Prosecution has made such inquiries of its own accord in 

some cases, these voluntary efforts do not expand the nature of its disclosure obligations. 

46. The Appeals Chamber notes that many Trial Chambers, in the exercise of their discretion, 

have requested the Prosecution to assist the defence and use its good offices in order to obtain such 

material in the interests of facilitating the mid  proceedings.'3R Mindful of the exceptional nature of 

review proceedings, the Appeals Chamber denies Mr. Rutaganda's request to order rhe Prosecution 

to obtain this material from Rwanda Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Mr. 

Rutaganda's Request for Disclosure in its entirety. 

47. For the foregoing reasons, Mr. Rutaganda's Requests for Reconsideration and Clarification, 

Request for Review, Request for Assignment of Counsel, and Request for Disclosure are denied. 

Done in English and French, the Enghsh version being authoritative. 

Done this 8th day of December 2006, 
At The Hague, 
The Netherlands. 

'" See The Pmsecutor v. Georges Rutagar&, Case No. 99-03-T, Decision on the Defence Motion for J3sclasurc 01 
Evidence. 4 September 1998. pp. 2,7. 8. 
"6 ~ u t q u n d u  Appeal Judgemen& para. 192. 
In Kujclijdi A p p d  Judgement, pan. 263. 
''% Prusecutor v. Aloys Simbu, Case No. ICTR-OI-76-T, Dccision on M a t h  Relarcd to Wirness KDD's Judicial 
Dossim, I November 2004, paras 11, 15. 
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